Governors State University OPUS Open Portal to University Scholarship

Student Handbooks Student Affairs

2012

Student Handbook 2012-2013

Governors State University

Follow this and additional works at: http://opus.govst.edu/student handbooks

Recommended Citation

Governors State University, "Student Handbook 2012-2013" (2012). *Student Handbooks*. Paper 2. http://opus.govst.edu/student_handbooks/2

This Book is brought to you for free and open access by the Student Affairs at OPUS Open Portal to University Scholarship. It has been accepted for inclusion in Student Handbooks by an authorized administrator of OPUS Open Portal to University Scholarship. For more information, please contact opus@govst.edu.



Student Handbook 2012-2013

The policies and procedures are not the full and complete policies and procedures of Governors State University. For additional policies and procedures go to www.govst.edu/policies or the Governors State University Catalog at www.govst.edu/catalog

Table of Contents

1.	Mission Statement	1
2.	Student Services	1
3.	Student Affairs and Academic Services Posting Policy	14
4.	Student Right to Know	14
5.	Emergency Procedures	14
6.	Volunteer Emergency Worker	16
7.	Student Records	16
8.	Civility Policy	21
9.	Accommodating Religious Observances	22
10	. Sexual Harassment	23
11	. Student Conduct Code	23
12	. Student Misconduct	26
13	. Referrals of Misconduct	28
14	. Student Grievance Policy and Procedures	31
	14.1 Academic Grievances	32
	14.2 Non-Academic Grievances	35
15	. Copyright Law	36
16	. Drug and Alcohol Abuse	38
17	. Use of Alcohol on Campus	40

1. MISSION STATEMENT

Governors State University is committed to offering an exceptional and accessible education that imbues students with the knowledge, skills, and confidence to succeed in a global society. GSU is dedicated to creating an intellectually stimulating public square, serving as an economic catalyst for the region, and being a model of diversity and responsible citizenship.

2. STUDENT SERVICES

At-a-Glance Directory		
Academic transcripts	Registrar (C1300) (708) 534-4500	
Adding/Dropping course	Registrar (C1300) (708) 534-4500	
Arranging student fundraising activities	Student Life Center (A2104) (708) 235-7653	
Assistance with career credentials/job searches and interviewing	Career Services (A1120) (708) 235-3974	
Campus information	Welcome Center (D1400) (708) 534-4363	
Center for Performing Arts	Box Office (708) 235-2222	
Check cashing	Cashier Office (C1336) (708) 534-4055	
Childcare services	Family Development Center (FDC Building) (708) 235-7300	
Computer assistance	ACS Lab (D2431) (708) 534-4990 Ext. 5370	
Copies	ACS Lab (D2431) (708) 534-4990 Ext. 5370	
Counseling Services	Academic Resource Center (B1215) (708) 534-4090	
Disability accommodations	Academic Resource Center (B1215) (708) 534-4090	
Visa Information	International Services (3370) (708) 534-3087	
Escort to car	Department of Public Safety (C1375) (708) 534-4900	
Getting into your locked car	Department of Public Safety (C1375) (708) 534-4900	

ID cards	Student Central (D1400) (708) 534-4363
Joining a club/organization	Student Life Center (A2104) (708) 235-7653
Lockers	Recreation and Fitness (A1106) (708) 534-4556
Lost and found	Department of Public Safety (C1375) (708) 534-4900
Name, address, telephone changes	Registrar (C1300) (708) 534-4500
Paying a motor vehicle fine	University Park Police
	698 Burnham Drive, University Park, IL 60466
Publicizing an event	Student Life Center (A2104) (708) 235-7653
Recreation/fitness memberships (family and community)	Recreation and Fitness Center Sales Office (A1106) (708) 534-4556
Tutoring	Academic Resource Center (B1215) (708) 235-4090
Service Learning/Volunteer Opportunities	Student Life Center (A2104) (708) 534-4552
Veteran Services/Certifying Official	Veteran Coordinator (A2108) (708) 235-7597
Withdrawing from the university	Registrar (C1300) (708) 534-4500 & Financial Aid (C1310)/(708) 534-4480
Writing assistance	Writing Center (C1321) (708) 235-7337

Student Scheduling University Facilities		
Center for Performing Arts	CPA Box Office	
Classrooms	Registrar (C1300)	
• E-Lounge	Student Life Center (A2104)	
 Engbretson Hall Hall of Governors Hall of Honors President's Conference Center Sherman Hall Music Recital Student Commons Annex Outside Areas 	Request forms available on www.govst.edu/studentlife	
GSU Express Schedule	Student Central (D1400)	
• Student Commons	Student Life (A2100)	
• Student Commons Annex	Student Life (A2134)	
• Student Gaming Lounge	Recreation and Fitness (A1106)	
Recreation Facilities	Student Life Facilities Supervisor (A1106)	

Who's Who at Governors State University

President	
Executive Vice President/Chief of Staff and Treasurer	Dr. Gebe Ejigu
Provost/Vice President for Academic Affairs	Dr. Terry Allison
General Counsel and Vice President	Alexis Kennedy
Associate Provost	Dr. Angela Latham
Assistant Provost/Assistant Vice President for Academic Affairs	Dr. Sandra Mayfield
Assistant Provost	Dr. James "Chip" Coldren
Vice President Enrollment Management and Marketing	Courtney Sanders
Vice President Administration and Finance	Karen Kissel
Chief Development Officer	Will Davis
Dean College of Arts & Sciences	Dr. Reinhold Hill
Dean College of Education	Dr. Deborah Bordelon
Dean College of Health and Human Services	
Dean College of Business and Public Administration	Dr. Ellen Foster-Curtis
Dean (interim), University Library	Lydia Morrow Ruetten
Dean of Students & Associate Vice President for Academic Affairs.	Dr. Aurélio Manuel Valente
Assistant Dean of Students (interim)	Sheree Y. Sanderson
Associate Vice President for Marketing and Communications	Rhonda Brown
Associate Vice President for Information Technology	Pete Mizera
Assistant Vice President Administrative Systems	Nick Battaglia
Assistant Vice President for Student Support Services	
Bookstore Manager	Bernie Bolz
Director of Academic Engagement	Dr. Randi Schneider
Director of Admissions	Yakeea Daniels
Director of Auxiliary Services & Residence Life	Betsy Joseph
Director of Career Services	Darcie Campos
Director of Disability Services	Robin Sweeney
Director of Government and Community Relations	Maureen Kelly
Associate Director of Financial Aid	Sylvia Ponce de Leon
Director of Food Service	Joe Lenard
Director Institutional Research and Effectiveness	Kirstan Neukam
Director of International Student Office	Jonathan Lee
Director of Public Safety/Chief of Police	James McGee
Director of Special Events	Karen Caesar-Smith
Director of Student Life	Vanessa Newby
Director of Student Recruitment and Outreach	Kristy Goodwin-Petersen
Interdisciplinary Studies Program (IDSS) Director	Dr. James Howley
Registrar	Michelle Smith-Williams
Veteran Services Coordinator/Certifying Official	Keith White
Writing Center Coordinator	Dr. Becky Nugent

Student Services:

Academic Computing Lab

The ACS Lab provides computer facilities and support to students, faculty, and staff. Our services include access to PCs and Macs with a wide variety of software applications, scanners, printers, Internet access, and more.

Academic Resource Center

The Academic Resource Center provides:

• Undergraduate Directed Self Placement Exam and New Student Orientation

- Student Counseling Services
- Services for Students with Disabilities
- CLEP and DSST Get College Credit Exams
- Tutoring: in basic business, computer science, mathematics, statistics, and science
- The Writing Center

Bookstore

Room D1493 Mon-Tues 10:00am-7:00pm (708) 534-4558/Toll-free: (877) 525-6578 Wed-Thurs 10:00am-6:00pm www.govst.edu/bookstore Fri 10:00am-3:00pm; Sat 10:00am-1:00pm

The Follett GSU Bookstore sells textbooks, GSU apparel, and other academic supplies. All course-material sales are final.

Career Services

Room A1120 Mon-Thurs 8:30am-7:00pm* (708) 235-3974 Fri 8:30am-5:00pm

www.govst.edu/careerservices

The Office of Career Services is a free resource center for current students and alumni seeking career guidance, internships, or full time or part time jobs. Career Services offers:

- Resume, cover letter, and credential file preparation
- Job search and interview strategies
- Career assessment, exploration, and identification assistance
- Resource materials
- Career and internship fairs
- Job and internship postings
- Career building workshops

The Center for Performing Arts

(708) 235-2222 – Box Office Monday–Saturday: 10 am – 4 pm On performance days, the box office is open two hours prior to curtain and through intermission. www.centertickets.net

The Center for Performing Arts continually exceeds expectations by offering exceptional performances by amazing artists. From comedians like Bill Cosby and musicians like B.B. King to Broadway productions like *Hairspray* and *Miss Saigon*, The Center consistently brings world-class entertainment to the region. The Center offer special students rates for GSU students.

Commencement

Commencement is held annually each May. Students who have fulfilled or will fulfill all graduation requirements during the academic year (Fall through Summer terms) will be invited to participate in that academic year's commencement ceremony. Participation in commencement is limited to students who:

- have been certified by the Registrar as having completed all requirements for the degree,
- have properly notified the Registrar's Office in timely fashion of their intention to participate in commencement, and
- who have no outstanding financial obligations to the University at the time of final commencement preparations.

Disability Services

Room B1215 (708) 235-3968 www.govst.edu/arc Mon-Thurs 8:30am-7:00pm* Fri 8:30am-5:00pm

Disability Services is dedicated to creating an accessible environment and equality of educational opportunities for students with documented disabilities. The goal is to focus on a student's ability not the disability. Disability Services ensures compliance with the Americans with Disabilities Act and with Section 504 of the Rehabilitation Act of 1973.

Legally mandated access and accommodations are available to all qualified students who self-identify with Disability Services. Students must provide documentation by a qualified professional who can verify the functional impact of the disability as well as recommendations for appropriate accommodations. The information provided by students is kept in locked, confidential files and is not made available to the campus community without the consent of the student.

To arrange for appropriate accommodations, please contact the coordinator of Disability Services in the Academic Resource Center. Legally mandated access and accommodations may include support such as:

- Sign language interpreters;
- Readers or scribes for exams;
- Modifications in test procedures;
- Note-taking assistance;
- Relocation of classes to more accessible spaces or use of specialized furniture;

- Use of specialized technology; and
- Conversion of materials into other formats such as large print.

Dual Degree Program (DDP)

(708) 534-4494 Mon-Thurs 8:30am-7:00pm

http://www.govst.edu/dualdegree/ Fri 8:30am-5:00pm

The Dual Degree Program (DDP) is a unique partnership between Governors State University and participating community colleges. DDP students complete their associate degree at their community college and then transfer seamlessly to GSU to complete their bachelor's degree—earning both degrees within four years.

Family Development Center

FDC Building Mon-Thurs 7:00am-8:00pm

(708) 235-7300 Fri 7:00am-6:00pm

The Family Development Center (FDC) provides university-quality programs for children and their parents.

- Birth to three
- All-day pre-kindergarten
- Half-day pre-kindergarten
- After-school and evening childcare
- Parent education programs

Financial Aid

Room D1400 Mon-Thurs 8:30am-7:00pm* (708) 534-4480 Fri 8:30am-5:00pm

www.govst.edu/finaid

The Office of Financial Aid assists students in obtaining the financial resources needed to finance their education and provides:

- Assistance with student employment or work study
- Explanation of financial aid and award criteria
- Assistance with financial aid application process
- Management of financial aid accounts

Food Service

(708) 235-7433 Mon-Thurs 8:00am-7:30pm

Hall of Governors Fri 8:00am-2:00pm; Sat-Sun CLOSED

FSI provides the GSU food service. The full-service cafeteria provides breakfast, soups, salads, daily entrees, made-to-order sandwiches and grill specialties, and, of course, desserts. The cafeteria accepts cash, Visa, and MasterCard. Hours of operation and services provided may vary. Food services also include catering and vending. Vending machines are located next to the cafeteria and in various locations on campus.

Nathan Manilow Sculpture Park

(708) 534-4486

www.govst.edu/nmsp

Open dawn to dusk, 365 days a year

The Nathan Manilow Sculpture Park is a nationally recognized outdoor museum of contemporary sculpture. Premier examples of modern works by some of the world's most respected sculptors surround the University. Docents are available to guide tours of the park and introduce the art and artists.

Office Of Admissions And Recruitment

Room D1400 Mon-Thurs 8:30am-7:00pm (708) 534-4490 Fri 8:30am-5:00pm

www.govs.edu/admission First & Third Sat 10:00am-12:00pm-

By Appointment

Admission Office counselors and staff:

• Help make the application process straightforward and seamless

• Distribute information and applications

• Provide admissions counseling services

Office Of International Services

Room C3370 Mon-Fri 8:30am-5:00pm (708) 235-7611

www.govst.edu/ois

The Office of International Services (OIS) is committed to helping international students at GSU with advice and support to help students meet their academic goals and have a successful experience in the U.S.

Recreation/Fitness Center

 Room A1106
 Mon-Fri 6:00-am-9:00pm

 (708) 534-4945
 Sat 8:30am-4:30pm

 www.govst.edu/recfit
 Sun** 12:00pm-4:30pm

 Family Times
 Wed & Fri 5:00pm-9:00pm

 Sat & Sun 11:00am-4:30pm

Free membership to currently enrolled students. Paid memberships available for family and community members.

- Swimming Pool
- Fitness Room
- Gymnasium
- Racquetball Court
- Fitness Classes
- Team Sports include Table Tennis, Bowling League, and Golf Club

Registrar

Room C1300 (708) 534-4500 www.govst.edu/registrar Mon-Thurs 8:30am-7:00pm* Fri 8:30am-5:00pm

The Registrar's Office preserves the academic integrity of the University and serves as the official recorder and keeper of student records. The office preserves and maintains official academic records. Access your academic records, register for classes, or check financial aid status via the Student Web Information System (www.govst.edu/register). Forms for additional registrar services are available in the office or online. The privacy of student information maintained by the University is protected by Federal Law, the Family Educational Rights and Privacy Act (FERPA).

Student Clubs And Organizations

(708) 534-4552

www.govst.edu/studentlife

Students may take advantage of the more than 40 student and University clubs and organizations, including the Student Senate, which exist at GSU. These clubs provide students with the opportunity to meet others with the same majors or interests. The majority of organizations are related to academic programs, while others support a variety of social and special interests.

Any group of students can form new clubs and organizations. A minimum of seven students can seek chartering as a student club or organization. Students can select their advisor in cooperation with the Student Engagement Office. All organizations must renew their charters each academic year. For information or assistance, contact the Interim Assistant Dean of Students.

RECOGNIZED STUDENT ORGANIZATIONS

Student Organization	Faculty Advisor	E-Mail
Accounting & Finance Club	Ting J. Wang	twang@govst.edu
Alpha Eta - Gamma Psi Upsilon	Nancy Burley	nburley@govst.edu
Alpha Sigma Lambda	Paula Leviticus and	pleviticus@govst.edu and
	LaTonya Holmes	<u>lholmes@govst.edu</u>
Alpha Upsilon Alpha	Sandra Gandy	sgandy@govst.edu
Art Forum	Javier Chavira	jchavira@govst.edu
American Production and Inventory	John Simon	jsimon@govst.edu
Control Society		
Association of Latin American Students	Jose Reyes	jreyes@govst.edu
Biology Club	John Yunger	jyunger@govst.edu
Black Student Union	Tina Hughes-Burke	jhughes@govst.edu
Bowling League	Ann-Manning-Nagel	amanning-nagel@govst.edu
Capoeira Club	Dr. Maristella Zell	mzell@govst.edu
Chemistry Club	Dr. Shelly Kumar	skumar@govst.edu

Chi Sigma Iota (counselor honor society)	Jon Carlson	jcarlson@govst.edu
Chinese Students' Association	Changyue Luo	cluo@govst.edu
Communicator's Network (TCN)	Tamera Winn	twinn@govst.edu
Computer Science Club	Steve Shih	sshih@govst.edu
Criminal Justice Club	Caron Jacobson	cjacobson@govst.edu
Dance International	Vanessa Newby	vnewby@govst.edu
Delta Mu Delta	Praggyan Mohanty	pmohanty@govst.edu
Forensic Debate Team	Arness Krause	akrause@govst.edu
Gay/Straight Alliance	Jim Howley	jhowley@govst.edu
Human Resource Management Club	Chris Easley	ceasley@govst.edu
Illinois Counseling Association	Tracey Kim Snow	ksnow@govst.edu
International Students Organization	Dr. Shelly Kumar	skumar@govst.edu
Japanese Philosophy Art and Culture Club	Makiko Miyara	mmiyara@govst.edu
Lambda Alpha Epsilon	Caron Jacobsen	cjacobsen@govst.edu
Lambda Pi Eta	Tamera Winn	twinn@govst.edu
Management and Leadership Organization	Dr. David Curtis	dcurtis@govst.edu
Management Information Systems	Steve Hyzny	shyzny@govst.edu
Masters of Public Administration Club	Susan Gaffney	sgaffney@govst.edu
Mu Beta Alpha	Phyllis Anderson	panderson@govst.edu
Muslim Student Association	Rashidah Muhammad	rmuhammad@govst.edu
National Student Speech Language	Stephanie Hughes	shughes@govst.edu
Hearing Association		
Occupational Therapy Club	Patti Kalvelage	pkalvelage@govst.edu
Phi Alpha Honor Society	Dr. Maristella Zell	mzell@govst.edu
Physical Therapy Student Association	Joyce Sligar	jsligar@govst.edu
Phi Theta Epsilon	Elizabeth Cada	ecada@govst.edu
President's Club Council	Denise Bland	dbland@govst.edu
SLiCK (Student Leadership Inspired by		
Consuelo Kickbusch)		
Soccer Club	Keith White	kwhite@govst.edu
Social Work Student Organization	Phyllis West	pwest@govst.edu
Society of Collegiate Entrepreneurs	Rob Sinclair	rsinclair@govst.edu
Spanish Reading and Writing Club		
Student Education Association	Sara Acton	sacton@govst.edu
Student Healthcare Management	Dr. Rupert Evans	revans@govst.edu
Association		
Student Senate	Sheree Sanderson	ssanderson@govst.edu
Student Sustainability Committee	Dr. Maristella Zell	mzell@govst.edu
Students of Addiction Studies (SAS)	Dr. James Golding	jgolding@govst.edu
Table Tennis Club	TJ Wang	twang@govst.edu
Tau Sigma National Honor Society	Sheree Sanderson	ssanderson@govst.edu
The Phoenix (GSU Newspaper)	Victoria Pierce	vpierce@govst.edu
Wellness Club	Vanessa Newby	vnewby@govst.edu

HONOR SOCIETIES

Honor Society	Faculty Advisor	E-Mail
Alpha Eta Society	Nancy Burley	nburley@govst.edu
(Honor Society for Allied Health)		
Alpha Sigma Lambda	LaTonya Holmes	lholmes@govst.edu
(Honor Society for Adult Learners)		
Alpha Upsilon Alpha (Honor Society for the	Sandra Gandy	sgandy@govst.edu
International Reading Association)		
Chi Sigma Iota	Jon Carlson	jcarlson@govst.edu
(Counselor Honor Society)		
Delta Mu Delta	Jun Zhao	jzhao@govst.edu
(Business Honor Society)		
Lambda Alpha Epsilon	Caron Jacobsen	cjacobsen@govst.edu
(Honor Society for Criminal Justice)		
Lambda Pi Eta	Tamera Winn	twinn@govst.edu
(Honor Society for Communication Studies)		
Mu Beta Alpha	Phyllis Anderson	panderson@govst.edu
(Honor Society for MBA's)		
Phi Alpha	Dr. Maristella	mzell@govst.edu
(Honor Society for social work)	Zell	
Phi Theta Epsilon (Honor Society for	Catherine Brady	cbrady@govst.edu
Occupational Therapy)		
SALUTE Veterans National	Keith White	kwhite@govst.edu
Tau Sigma	Sheree Sanderson	ssanderson@govst.edu

Student Commons

Room A2140

Located in the Student Center, the Student Commons is the place to come and meet with friends, listen to music, watch television, or just relax.

Student Commons Annex

Room A2134

(708) 534-4550

Located in the Student Center, Clubs can use this area for meetings, activities or just a quiet place to study. Reserve meeting rooms through Student Life.

Student Gaming Lounge

A North Hall

GSU provides additional common space for the students. Billiard, fuse ball, and table tennis tables are located in the A North Hall. Use your GSU student ID card to check out equipment. Ball, cues, and paddles can be checked out at the Recreation and Fitness counter (A1105).

Student Governance

Room A2122 Student Senate by appointment only

(708) 534-7056 BOT & IBHE Representatives by appointment only

Students elect other students to represent them on the GSU Student Senate. Elections are held in the spring semester. Students also elect a representative to the University's Board of Trustees, as well as a representative and alternate to the Illinois Board of Higher Education Student Advisory Committee. Positions are open to all students in academic good standing.

Student Life Leadership Suites

Room A2100 Mon-Fri 8:30am-5:00pm

www.govst.edu/studentlife

University Library

Room D2400 Mon-Thurs 8:30am-9:30pm*

Reference: (708) 534-4111 Fri 8:30am-5:00pm Circulation: (708) 534-4112 Sat 8:30am-5:00pm www.govst.edu/library Sun 12:00pm-4:30pm**

The Governors State University Library faculty and staff welcome you; we are here to serve and help you with your information needs. The library maintains an extensive collection of print, audiovisual, and electronic materials. The collection encompasses more than 466,000 print volumes; more than 28,000 media items, including videocassettes, compact discs, filmstrips, slides, and kits; more than 1,000,000 items on microfiche/film; more than 1,800 journal subscriptions and more than 50,000 electronic serial subscriptions, as well as CD-ROMs and DVDs. The library is a select depository for both United States and Illinois government documents. Electronic resources are available from the library's website 24 hours per day, seven days per week. Library staff members provide tours of the library, and library faculty members provide library instruction to individuals and groups upon request.

Visual Arts Gallery

Adjacent to E-Lounge (708) 534-4021

Exhibitions of student and faculty artwork as well as regional art exhibitions, visiting exhibitions and juried shows are held at the Visual Arts Gallery throughout the year. The exhibits are free and open to the public.

Student Central/Welcome Center

Room D1400

(708) 534-4550

- Student ID Cards
- Student Lockers
- Post Notices on Campus Bulletin Boards
- GSU Express Schedules (Shuttle Bus)
- General Information

Veterans Resource Center

Room A2108 (708) 235-7597 www.govst.edu/veterans Mon-Tues & Thur-Fri 8:30am-5:00pm Wed 9:30am-6:00pm

The Office of the Coordinator for Veterans and Military Personnel at Governors State University has been established to provide assistance and resource referral for our students who are veterans, active duty military, and their family members.

Please register with the office of the coordinator for veterans and military personnel to be kept up to date on news and events dealing with veterans' issues at veterans@govst.edu.

Writing Center

Room C1319 (708) 235-7337 Mon-Thurs 8:30am-7:00pm Fri 8:30am-5:00pm

www.govst.edu/owl

- On-site tutoring By appointment only
- Tutors in the Library
- Online Writing Center submit papers to www.govst.edu/owl, and receive revision suggestions
- * When classes are not in session, office hours are Monday–Friday, 8:30 am–5:00 pm. Note: Some office locations are subject to change.
- ** Closed Sundays during Summer Term.

3. STUDENT AFFAIRS AND SUPPORT SERVICES POSTING POLICY

Prior approval by Student Life is required to post materials on Student Life Bulletin boards.

Types of material which may be posted include, but are not limited to: event notices of activities offered by the Student Life Unit, events and activities sponsored by recognized student groups and organizations, events and activities offered by Governors State University or their associates (i.e. FSI, Follett Bookstore), non-profit events and activities of interest to Governors State University students, and direct service items considered on a case-by-case basis.

Approved items must have a Student Life unit date stamp and authorized initials/signature, which may be obtained in the Student Life (A2100). Materials are displayed within 48 hours of submission.

Due to limited board space, full exposure for very large, double-sided, or bi-fold pieces cannot be guaranteed on Student Life bulletin boards. Only twelve (12) copies for display are accepted. Student Life may remove unauthorized or outdated material on a daily basis. The maximum posting time for any material posted is 30 days.

4. STUDENT RIGHT TO KNOW

Jeanne Clery Disclosure of Campus Security Policy and Campus Crime Statistics Act

Establishing and maintaining a safe and secure environment for our staff, students, and visitors is of primary importance to Governors State University. As part of this commitment and in compliance with the Jeanne Clery Disclosure of Campus Security Policy and Crime Statistics Act of 1990, the Campus Security Report is available for review on the web at www.govst.edu/cleryact and in printed form at Department of Public Safety (DPS), located on the University's main campus, Room C1375.

5. EMERGENCY PROCEDURES

The Governors State University Department of Public Safety (DPS) is open 24 hours a day providing police services seven days a week. The DPS operates three shifts working both foot patrols and vehicle patrol throughout campus. The department operates a 24 hour Communication Unit. A communication officer receives all incoming telephone calls and coordinates all radio traffic. The communication unit dispatches police officers to locations on campus to answer calls for service.

Contact Numbers Red Campus Phones: Direct line to DPS

Yellow Campus Phones: Red button provides a direct line to DPS

Campus Phones - Emergency: Dial 911

Other Phones: (708) 534-4900 Dean of Students: (708) 534-7595

Interim Assistant Dean of Students: (708) 534-4552 Non-emergency from other phones: (708) 534-4900 Non-emergency from campus telephone: extension 4900 University Closing Information: (708) 534-4909

Closings

University Closing Information: (708) 534-4909 Students can also learn about school closings on the following radio and television stations: WGN AM 720, WBBM AM 780, WBBM TV Channel 2, WMAQ TV Channel 5, WLS TV Channel 7, WGN TV Channel 9, WFLD TV Channel 32, and on cable at CLTV News.

For the most up to date information regarding closings, visit the Governors State University web page at www.govst.edu.

Timely Warning Reports

If at any time the Chief of Police of the University's Department of Public Safety believes that a possible threat exists to Governors State University students, faculty, and staff because of an incident occurring on or off campus, or because of any other circumstance, the Chief will issue a warning of that threat through GSU's e-mail system to enrolled students, faculty, and staff; posted notices on the front page of the GSU website (www.govst.edu); broadcasted voice message through speakers on campus telephones (Berbee); and via the School Messenger System. The School Messenger System enables emergency notification via text messages to cell phones, voice mail to designated telephone numbers, and to an additional email address as designated by the registered recipients of this service.

Fire Procedures

All students and University personnel must evacuate the building when the fire alarm sounds. Faculty members in classrooms and administrators in all buildings are to enforce the following safety regulations when the fire alarm sounds:

- Evacuate all areas
- Close all doors and windows
- Identify any disabled person needing assistance; arrange for necessary aid in evacuation
- Follow directional signs to fire exits; use stairs, not elevators
- Move away from the building, across the street, down the sidewalks, or to a designated safety area

Tornado Procedures

A Tornado Watch indicates a possible storm; a Tornado Warning means a tornado has been sighted in the area and residents should seek shelter.

If a Tornado Warning is issued by the Weather Bureau and you are inside:

- Remain calm
- Open a few windows on the northeast side of the building to equalize the pressure.
- Make sure disabled persons receive assistance as needed

- Lie under a desk or heavy table or go out into a designated area (see posted signs) and stand against the inside wall at the center of the designated area
- In the event of a Tornado Warning in the counties that surround Will County, seek immediate shelter. Do not leave until the GSU Department of Public Safety indicates it is safe to do so

If a Tornado Warning is issued by the Weather Bureau and you are outside:

- Travel at right angles to the path of the funnel
- Lie in a ditch and protect your head
- Take shelter in a steel-framed or reinforced concrete building
- Avoid buildings with wide-span roofs
- Do not stay in your car

6. VOLUNTEER EMERGENCY WORKER

Consistent with the Volunteer Emergency Worker Higher Education Protection Act (110 ILCS 122), Governors State University will provide reasonable accommodation for any student who is absent from class due to the performance of her or his duties as a volunteer emergency worker. A volunteer emergency worker is defined in the Volunteer Emergency Worker Job Protection Act (50 ILCS 748) and in most cases would be a volunteer firefighter, emergency medical technician, ambulance driver or attendant, or other first responder.

If an absence is the result of a student's documented performance of emergency volunteer work, an instructor must accommodate the absence within reason. A student who believes that he or she has been unreasonably denied this accommodation may seek redress through the academic grievance procedure outlined in the Institutional Policy Manual.

7. STUDENT RECORDS POLICY

Governors State University maintains individual records and information about students for the purpose of providing educational, vocational, and personal services to the student. As required by the Family Educational Rights and Privacy Act (FERPA) of 1974, the following policy outlines procedures for access to student records. The policy is intended to ensure the confidentiality of student education records, to establish the right of students to inspect and review their education records, and to provide guidelines for the correction of inaccurate or misleading data. The University has an obligation to limit access to student information to those legitimate uses defined in the policy, and to insure that data are stored securely to prevent unauthorized access.

The following briefly outlines procedures for access to student records as required by FERPA. The complete policy may be found at www.govst.edu/policy. Questions regarding FERPA should be directed to the Registrar, Room C1300, (708) 534-4500.

Definitions

A **student** is any person who is, or was, in attendance at Governors State University.

An **education record** is any record (written, printed, taped, filmed, etc.) maintained by Governors State University or by an agent or employee of the University that is directly related to a student, with the following exceptions:

- A record kept by a University employee if it is kept in the sole possession of the maker of the record and is not accessible or revealed to other persons except for a temporary substitute for the maker of the record.
- Records created and maintained by Public Safety strictly for law enforcement purposes.
- An employment record of an individual, whose employment is not contingent on the fact that the individual is a student, provided the record is used only in relation to the individual's employment.
- Records made or maintained by a physician, psychiatrist, psychologist, or other recognized health professional/paraprofessional if the records are used only for the treatment of a student and are made available only to those persons providing the treatment.
- Alumni records which contain information about a student after the student is no longer in attendance at the University and which do not relate to the person as a student.

A **parent** includes a natural parent of a student, a guardian, or an individual acting as a parent in the absence of a parent or a guardian.

An **eligible parent** is either (1) a parent of a student who has given written consent for the parent to review the student's education records or (2) a parent who has claimed the student as a dependent as defined in Section 152 of the Internal Revenue Code of 1954 in the most recently ended tax year.

Annual Notification

GSU students will be notified of their Family Educational Rights and Privacy Act rights annually through Student Handbook and GSU Catalog.

Procedure to Inspect Education Records

- Students may inspect and review their education records upon request to the appropriate record custodians who are listed in Section H. A student should submit to the appropriate record custodian a written request that specifies the record(s) the student wishes to inspect.
- An eligible parent of a student may inspect the student's education records if either written consent is provided to the appropriate record custodian by the student, or a copy of the 1040 series income tax form filed with IRS for the most recently ended tax year is submitted by the parent to the appropriate record custodian showing that the student is claimed as defined in section 152 of the Internal Revenue Code of 1954.
- The record custodian will make the needed access arrangements as promptly as possible and notify the student or eligible parent of the time and location where the records may be inspected. Access must be provided within 45 days or less from receipt of the request.

- When a record contains information about more than one student, the student or eligible parent may inspect and review only the records that relate to the student.
- The review must be done in the presence of a University representative. Original records may not be removed from any office where they are maintained

Right of the University to Refuse Access

Governors State University reserves the right to refuse to permit a student (or eligible parent except with respect to the parent's financial records) to inspect the following records:

- The financial statement of the student's parents.
- Letters and statements of recommendation for which the student has waived the right of access, or which were placed in the student's file before January 1, 1975.
- Those records which are excluded from the Family Educational Rights and Privacy Act of 1974 definition of education records if such records do not fall within the definition of "public records".

Refusal to Provide Copies

Governors State University reserves the right to deny transcripts or copies of records not otherwise required to be made available by the Family Educational Rights and Privacy Act of 1974 in any of the following situations:

- The student or eligible parent lives within commuting distance (presumed to be 50 miles) of the University. EducRecords.doc 3
- The student has an unpaid financial obligation to the University or an administrative hold on the academic record.
- There is an unresolved disciplinary action against the student.
- There is an unresolved academic action against the student.

Fees for Copies of Records

Students may have copies made of their education record upon payment of an appropriate charge established by the University.

Types, Locations, and Custodians of Education Records

The following is a list of the types of education records that GSU maintains, their locations, and their custodians.

Types	Location	Custodian
Academic Records	Office of the Registrar	Registrar
College of Business & Public		Dean
Administration		
College of Arts & Science		Dean
College of Education		Dean
College of Health & Human		Dean
Services		
IDSS Program		Program Director
Admission Records	Admissions Office	Director of
		Admissions
Career Related Records	Office of Career Services	Director of Career
		Services
Counseling/Testing/Tutoring	Academic Resource Center	Academic Resource
Records		Center
Disabled Students with	Academic Resource Center	Director of
Disabilities		Disability Services
Disciplinary Records	Office of the Dean	Dean of Students
Financial Records	Business Office	Director of Business
		Operations
	Financial Aid Office	Director of Financial
		Aid
International Student Records	Office of International Services	Director of
		International Student
		Services
Professional Credential Records	Office of Career Services	Director of Career
for Employment		Services
Miscellaneous Education Records	The appropriate University	
(e.g., meetings with faculty)	employee official will locate and	
	collect such records for inspection.	

Disclosure of Education Records

Governors State University will disclose information from a student's education records only with the written consent of the student, except:

- To University officials who have a legitimate educational interest in the records.
- Definitions of University Official and Legitimate Educational Interest may be found in the Student Records Policy at www.govst.edu/policy.
- To officials of another school, upon request, in which a student seeks or intends to enroll.
- To certain officials of the United States Department of Education, and state and local educational authorities, in connection with certain state or federally supported education programs.

- In connection with a student's request for or receipt of financial aid as necessary to determine the eligibility, amount, or conditions of the financial aid, or to enforce the terms and conditions of the financial aid, or to enforce the terms and conditions of the aid.
- To organizations conducting certain studies for or on behalf of the University.
- To accrediting organizations to carry out their functions.
- To parents of a student who claim the student as a dependent for income tax purposes as defined in section 152 of the Internal Revenue Code of 1954.
- To comply with a judicial order or a lawfully issued subpoena.
- To appropriate parties in a health or safety emergency.
- Directory information so designated by the University.
- The results of any disciplinary proceeding conducted by the University against an alleged perpetrator of a crime of violence to the alleged victim of that crime.

Record of Requests for Disclosure

Governors State University will maintain a record of all requests for and/or disclosure of information from a student's education records, other than requests by or disclosures to the student, a University official, a party with written consent of the student, or a party seeking only directory information. The record will indicate the name of the party making the request, any additional party to whom it may be redisclosed, and the legitimate interest the party had in requesting or obtaining the information. The record may be reviewed by an eligible parent or by the student.

University Directory Information

Directory information means information contained in the education record of a student which would not generally be considered harmful or an invasion of privacy if disclosed. Governors State University defines the following as directory information. Name, address, telephone number, date of birth, college and major field of study/concentration/minor, classification (graduate or undergraduate), previous institutions attended, participation in officially recognized activities, dates of attendance, degrees conferred with dates, current term hours enrolled and full-time/part-time status, awards, honors, and achievements (including distinguished academic performance) with dates, and picture.

Under the Federal Educational Rights and Privacy Act, a student has the right to request that the disclosure of directory information be withheld and omitted from the University Directory as long as the student is enrolled or maintains continuing student status at the University. If a student wishes to have any or all directory information withheld, the student must submit a written request to the Registrar's Office. Directory information may be released without permission for students who are no longer enrolled, have graduated, or have lost continuing student status at GSU, unless otherwise requested.

Correction of Education Records

Students have the right to ask to have records corrected that they believe are inaccurate, misleading, or in violation of their privacy rights. The following are procedures for the correction of records:

• A student must ask the appropriate records custodian, listed in Section H, to amend a specific record. In so doing, the student should identify the part of the record the student wants

- changed and specify why the student believes it to be inaccurate, misleading, or in violation of the student's privacy or other rights.
- The custodian may comply with the request or may decide not to comply. If the custodian decides not to comply, the custodian will notify the student of the decision and advise the student of the right to a hearing to challenge the information believed to be inaccurate, misleading, or in violation of the student's rights.
- Upon request, the custodian will arrange for a hearing and will notify the student reasonably in advance of the date, location, and time of the hearing.
- The hearing will be conducted by a hearing officer who is a disinterested party appointed by the Provost. The hearing officer may be an official of the University. The student shall be afforded a full and fair opportunity to present evidence relevant to the issues raised in the original request to amend the student's education records. The student may be assisted by one or more individuals, including an attorney.
- The hearing officer will prepare a written decision based solely on the evidence presented at the hearing. The decision will include a summary of the evidence presented and the reasons for the decision.
- If the hearing officer decides that the contested information is not inaccurate, misleading, or in violation of the student's right of privacy, the hearing officer will notify the student that the student has a right to place in the record, a statement commenting on the contested information and/or a statement setting forth reasons for disagreeing with the decision.
- The statement will be maintained as part of the student's education records as long as the contested portion is maintained. If GSU discloses the contested portion of the record, it will also disclose the statement.
- If the hearing officer decides that the information is inaccurate, misleading, or in violation of the student's right to privacy, the appropriate record custodian will amend the record and notify the student, in writing, that the record has been amended.
- Students have the right to file complaints with The Family Educational Rights and Privacy Act Office (FERPA), Department of Education, Washington, D.C., 20201, concerning alleged failures of GSU to comply with the Act.

8. CIVILITY POLICY

As set forth in its Mission Statement, "Governors State University is committed to offering an exceptional and accessible education that imbues students with the knowledge, skills, and confidence to succeed in a global society. GSU is dedicated to creating an intellectually stimulating public square, serving as an economic catalyst for the region, and being a model of diversity and responsible citizenship."

The faculty, staff, and students of Governors State University, as members of the University community, can expect to be treated with respect and consideration and are expected to treat others in a similar manner.

All members of the community must treat other members with civility and respect, while recognizing that disagreement and informed debate are valued in an academic community. Demeaning, intimidating, threatening, or violent behavior, either in verbal or written form, that

affects the ability to learn, teach, or work in the University community are unacceptable and violate Governors State University's standard for civility and respect.

Individuals covered by this policy include all members of the Governors State University community (faculty, staff, and students of Governors State University). Contractors and vendors of Governors State University, as well as visitors to the campus are also expected to comply with the requirements of this policy.

Violation of the Policy

A University community member who has violated the policy is subject to disciplinary action, which may include separation of the offending party from the University, consistent with established disciplinary procedures.

Non-compliant behavior by contractors, vendors, or visitors may lead to removal from the campus, at the discretion of Governors State University.

Responsibility to Act

A member of the community who is involved in or witnesses behavior on campus that imposes imminent danger to people or property should immediately contact the Department of Public Safety.

Red Campus Phones:	Direct line to DPS
Yellow Campus Phones:	Red button provides a direct line to DPS
Campus Phones - Emergency:	Dial 911
- Non Emergency:	Dial 4900
Non-emergency - Other Phones:	Dial (708) 534-4900
Dean of Students:	Dial (708) 235-7595

A supervisor, division/department chair, dean, the Department of Human Resources, or the Office of the Provost should be contacted in situations that do not involve imminent danger, for advice on the proper course of action, or to make a complaint.

9. ACCOMMODATING RELIGIOUS OBSERVANCES

Governors State University will not discriminate against students for observing religious holidays and will reasonably accommodate the religious observance of individual students in regard to admission, class attendance, and the scheduling of examinations and academic work requirements.

- It is the responsibility of the student to notify in writing the GSU administrator/faculty member involved at least three class periods in advance of the date of the religious observance.
- Accommodations considered unreasonable are those which would necessitate the modification of academic standards or create undue hardship on the University or its staff.
- If a student feels he/she has been discriminated against, redress can be sought through the Student Grievance Procedure.
- This policy must be published in the student handbook and the University catalog.

10. SEXUAL HARASSMENT

Governors State University will not tolerate sexual harassment of students or employees and will take action to provide remedies when such harassment is identified. The University environment must be free of sexual harassment in work and study. Violations of the University's sexual harassment policy should be reported immediately to the Affirmative Action Officer, (708) 534-4124 for investigation. The complete policy is available online at www.govst.edu/policy.

11. STUDENT CONDUCT CODE

Scope and Purpose

Governors State University strives to cultivate a community which values academic freedom, integrity, excellence in scholarship, justice, diversity, and access to educational opportunities. Each member of the community is responsible for creating and maintaining conditions which support these values and the University's mission.

This policy outlines a Code of Conduct for students at Governors State University, and specifies the rights and responsibilities of the University community in considering misconduct. This policy applies to students who are admitted or enrolled at Governors State University, and to student-sponsored organizations. This policy also specifies processes for investigation and resolution of charges of misconduct so that the rights of students and other community members are respected.

This policy also specifies the responsibilities of faculty and administrators in considering student misconduct. The policy also provides for a Student Conduct Committee which has responsibility to conduct hearings on charges of student misconduct and advise administrators in the determination of sanctions.

University students are members of the academic community at Governors State University. As members of the academic community, students are entitled to the same rights and protections enjoyed by members of society. Students are subject to certain obligations by virtue of membership in the University community. Students are subject to civil law, the enforcement of which is the responsibility of duly constituted civil authorities.

The accrediting groups for the various academic programs at Governors State University may have different ethical standards and requirements regarding student conduct which supersede the University's student conduct policy and procedures. Please check with the division/department chair or dean's office in your college regarding a grievance policy and procedures specific to your academic major.

When students violate a University regulation, they are subject to disciplinary action by the University whether or not the conduct violates civil laws. When students violate civil law off campus, they may incur penalties as determined by civil authorities. Institutional action shall not be used to duplicate functions of general laws, but when a violation of the law also adversely affects the orderly operation of the University and its mission, the University may enforce its own regulations regardless of any civil proceedings or dispositions. University action will be

initiated only when the safety of faculty, staff, and students is endangered, or the institution's mission as an academic community is otherwise clearly involved.

Each GSU student is accountable for his/her actions relative to the following codes and regulations of conduct:

Student Code of Conduct

Governors State University recognizes the basic rights and responsibilities of the member of the University and accepts its obligation to preserve and protect those rights and responsibilities. Further, the University must provide for its members the opportunities and protections which best serve the nature of the educational process. The Student Conduct Code governing the behavior of students of the University must ensure the basic rights of the individual as well as the practical necessities of the community.

Students are expected to:

- treat students, faculty and staff of the University with fairness, and respect
- represent themselves in an honest manner (see academic honesty policy)
- respect University property and the activities conducted at University facilities or Universitysponsored events
- respect the property of others
- uphold University policies and all applicable laws

Governors State University students should expect the same degree of fairness and respect from other students, faculty, and staff.

The student conduct regulations which follow are set forth to give students general notice of prohibited conduct. These regulations are intended as a guide and are not meant to define misconduct in every circumstance. They apply to actions on University premises, at University-sponsored activities off campus, and to University related activities in the electronic environment.

Student Misconduct

<u>Academic Misconduct</u>: All violations of academic honesty related to fulfilling academic requirements, including but not limited to cheating, plagiarism, and/or knowingly assisting other students to engage in such conduct.

Non-Academic Misconduct:

- Use, possession, distribution, or being under the influence of narcotics or dangerous drugs, except as permitted by law.
- Furnishing false or misleading information to the University.
- Possession or use of firearms, explosives, dangerous chemicals, or other weapons, except as permitted by law.
- Assaulting, threatening, harassing, or endangering the health or safety of any individual.
- Willfully, denying to any person freedom of movement, use of authorized facilities, or right of entrance or exit; willfully impeding, obstructing, interfering with, or disrupting the

performance of institutional activities or duties; or occupying the institutional buildings or other property after due and legal notice to depart.

- Willfully damaging or destroying property of the University.
- Use, possession, or distribution of alcoholic beverages, except as permitted by institutional policy and state law.
- Intentionally initiating or causing any false report, warning, or threat of fire, explosion, or other emergency.
- Knowingly violating terms of any disciplinary sanction imposed in accordance with the code.
- Failure to comply with the directions of University officials, including campus police officers acting in performance of their duties.
- Forgery, unauthorized alteration, or unauthorized use of any University document or identification card.
- Unauthorized presence in or use of University premises, facilities, or properties.
- Theft or damage to public or private property.
- Misuse of University computer systems, laboratories, equipment, or software in violation of University policies.
- Disparaging comments or statements regarding the religious affiliation, gender, age, race, disability, sexual orientation or gender identity of others.

Actions Taken as a Result of Conduct Violations: Cases of non-academic misconduct shall be immediately referred to the Dean of Students and Associate Vice President of Academic Affairs (or designee), and may also be referred to the appropriate department. (i.e. damage to public property will be reported to the Department of Public Safety.)

Cases of alleged academic misconduct shall be handled by the respective collegial unit, except that recommendations for probation, suspension, or dismissal shall be referred to the Associate Vice President for Student Affairs and Dean of Students or designee.

Sanctions for Violations: The following disciplinary sanctions shall comprise the range of official sanctions which may be imposed for violation of conduct regulations. One or more sanctions may be imposed. Records of disciplinary action shall be recorded and kept by the Dean of Students and Associate Vice President of Academic Affairs or designee) for five years following the last term of enrollment, except as noted under Disciplinary Suspension and Disciplinary Dismissal.

<u>Disciplinary Warning</u>: Disciplinary warning is a notice to a student that previous conduct was unacceptable and that future breaches of conduct will be treated more severely.

<u>Disciplinary Probation</u>: Disciplinary probation is a trial period for a specific time during which a student must behave in a manner acceptable to the University. Terms of the probation shall reflect the purpose of the disciplinary sanction. Disciplinary probation status may affect qualification for awards, prizes, or student aid, when conduct acceptable to the University is a condition of such benefits. Violation of the terms of probation or of a further incident of misconduct may result in further disciplinary action.

<u>Disciplinary Suspension</u>: Disciplinary suspension is an action which excludes the student from registration, class attendance, and use of University facilities for a specified period of time. Disciplinary suspension is recorded on the student's academic record during the period in effect and is permanently removed upon reinstatement. Upon termination of the period of suspension, the student shall be considered for registration in compliance with the academic good standing policy and the policy on continuing student status then in effect. Established proof of a further incident of misconduct, after the student is readmitted, may result in disciplinary dismissal.

<u>Disciplinary Dismissal</u>: Disciplinary dismissal is the withdrawal by the University president of the privilege of registration and class attendance with no promise (implied or otherwise) that the student may return at any future time. The privilege of the use of University facilities is withdrawn by this action unless specific permission is obtained from the Dean of Students and Associate Vice President of Academic Affairs or designee. Disciplinary dismissal is recorded on the student's academic record, to be removed only if and when the student is reinstated. A student on disciplinary dismissal may be readmitted only by action of the president of the University. A student who has been dismissed is not eligible for readmission sooner than one year from the date of dismissal.

<u>Loss of Privilege</u>: Loss of privilege is the withdrawal of a privilege or use of a service for a specific period of time commensurate with the offense committed. Loss of privilege may be imposed separately or in addition to any other sanctions(s).

<u>Restitution</u>: Restitution requires a student to pay for damages to, or misappropriation of, University property, or the property of visitors to, or members of, the University community. Such restitution may be charged to any student who alone, or through group conducted activities, organizes, or knowingly participates in the events causing the damages or costs. Restitution may be imposed separately or in addition to any other sanction(s).

<u>Summary Suspension</u>: A summary suspension requires that a student immediately leave the campus.

12. STUDENT MISCONDUCT

Faculty Roles and Responsibilities

The faculty member has initial jurisdiction over any instances of academic misconduct that occur in association with a course being taught by the faculty member.

The faculty member may personally meet with the student to discuss misconduct and its consequences, (e.g. zero on an exam, plagiarism, a lower grade for the course, etc.). If the student and faculty member reach an agreement, this need not go further. However, a written statement or "letter of understanding" needs to be drafted by the faculty member and signed by the student to record the resolution of this matter. A copy of students' disciplinary records will be maintained in the office of the Dean of Students and Associate Vice President of Academic Affairs.

If the issue is not resolved, as described above, then the faculty member must notify the student in writing, by certified letter (with return receipt requested) of the alleged misconduct within fifteen working days (when classes are in session) of discovering the misconduct. If the certified letter is not sent within 15 days the faculty loses his/her right to file charges. The letter of notification sent to the student must include a request to schedule a meeting with the student within ten working days from the date of the letter (when the University is in session) to discuss the misconduct in question. The letter must specify a specific date and time for the meeting.

The faculty member may elect to resolve the matter by reducing the grade for the test, paper, or other course-related activity in question and/or by adjusting the grade for the course, including failure for the course.

If action is to be taken to reduce or change a grade, the faculty member must send written notification to the student with copies to the division/department chair and college dean within 10 working days (when classes are in session) following the meeting with the student, or from the date of the scheduled meeting with the student, if the student failed to meet with the faculty. Notification to the student must be done by certified mail.

Student Appeal Process for Reduced Grade

The student may appeal the faculty member's action of reducing a grade through the academic grievance process. (See the Policy on Student Grievance).

Referral to the Student Conduct Committee

- 1. If the faculty member determines that the student's misconduct cannot be resolved by reducing the grade for the test, paper, or other course-related activity in question and/or by adjusting the grade for the course, the faculty member must request a meeting with the division/department chair to discuss the matter.
- 2. The division/department chair and faculty member will meet to determine if the misconduct warrants additional disciplinary sanctions within ten working days (when the University is in session) of the date of the faculty member's request for a meeting. If it is determined that no further action is warranted, the faculty member will notify the student in writing by certified mail.
- 3. If the misconduct is perceived as warranting additional disciplinary sanctions, the division/department chair will forward this recommendation in writing to the dean. If the dean agrees with the recommendation this warrants referral for disciplinary sanction he/she will forward the conduct case with all relevant evidence and information to the Dean of Students and Associate Vice President of Academic Affairs (or designee) within ten working days (when the University is in session) of the consultation with the division/department chair. If the dean does not agree with the recommendation for a disciplinary sanction he/she will discuss with the division/department chair and/or faculty and a decision will be made regarding the referral. The timeline of ten working days applies.

13. REFERRALS OF MISCONDUCT

Dean of Students (or designee) Responsibilities

- 1. The Dean of Students and Associate Vice President of Academic Affairs (or designee) shall be responsible for all administrative details involved in academic and non-academic student conduct referrals.
- 2. Written complaints, reports involving student conduct, procedures for handling disciplinary cases, and the results of conducted hearings shall be maintained in the Dean of Students and Associate Vice President of Academic Affairs (or designee) office.
- 3. Any member of the University community may notify the Dean of Students and Associate Vice President of Academic Affairs (or designee) of violations of the University standards of conduct. The notification must be signed and in writing.
- 4. Non-Academic Violations of the University standards of conduct will normally be directly referred to and evaluated by the Dean of Students and Associate Vice President of Academic Affairs (or designee) to determine if further action at the University level is appropriate.
- 5. Academic Violations: The Dean of Students and Associate Vice President of Academic Affairs (or designee) will review referrals from the appropriate dean regarding academic violations of the University standards of conduct to determine if a hearing is warranted. If the Dean of Students and Associate Vice President of Academic Affairs (or designee) is notified of misconduct related to an academic matter by someone other than a division/department chair or dean of the college in which the incident occurred, the violation will be referred to the appropriate dean and/or division/department chair who will follow the process outlined above regarding academic grievances.
- 6. If the Dean of Students and Associate Vice President of Academic Affairs (or designee) determine a hearing is warranted, the Dean of Students and Associate Vice President of Academic Affairs (or designee) will schedule a hearing before the Student Conduct Committee as delineated below.
- 7. Within ten working days (when classes are in session) from the notification of the conduct code violation, the Dean of Students and Associate Vice President of Academic Affairs (or designee) will schedule a disciplinary hearing with the chair of the Student Conduct Committee. The Dean of Students and Associate Vice President of Academic Affairs (or designee) shall inform the student of the charges against him via certified mail and advise him/her of the date, time, and place that a disciplinary hearing is scheduled. This hearing shall be scheduled to take place not less than five and not more than 10 working days following the date of student notification (when classes are in session).

Student Conduct Committee Composition and Charge

- The Student Conduct Committee will be a standing committee to hear both academic and non-academic conduct code violations which may result in a disciplinary sanction. The committee shall advise the Dean of Students and Associate Vice President of Academic Affairs (or designee) on matters relating to determination of student misconduct and disciplinary action.
- 2. The committee shall be composed of seven persons as follows: four students appointed by the Student Senate and two alternates, two faculty members appointed by the Faculty Senate and one alternate; one administrator appointed by the Dean of Students and Associate Vice President of Academic Affairs (or designee), and one alternate.

- 3. The chairperson shall be chosen from within the committee.
- 4. All members shall serve two-year, renewable terms.
- 5. At least four members (representing at least two different groups) must be present to conduct a hearing.
- 6. Individual members must recuse themselves from hearing any case in which they feel they could not render an impartial judgment.

Student Disciplinary Conduct Hearings

- 1. The complainant(s) will not be required to participate, unless his/her personal testimony is essential to the disposal of the case.
- 2. The hearing shall be private (closed) unless the student charged requests that it be open to members of the University community, and the request is approved by both the Conduct Committee and the Dean of Students and Associate Vice President of Academic Affairs (or designee).
- 3. The student shall have the right to be assisted by an advisor or legal counsel at the hearings.
- 4. Students must inform the Dean of Students and Associate Vice President of Academic Affairs (or designee) at least five working days in advance of the hearing if they intend to have legal counsel present. In such cases, the University may also have legal counsel present. If the student does not give five days' notice, the Dean of Students and Associate Vice President of Academic Affairs (or designee) has the right to reschedule the hearing to an agreeable time.
- 5. On behalf of the University, the charges and evidence will be presented by the Dean of Students and Associate Vice President of Academic Affairs (or designee). The student shall have the right to call a reasonable number of witnesses in his/her own behalf who shall be subject to questioning by members of the committee and the Dean of Students and Associate Vice President of Academic Affairs or that individual's designee. The Dean of Students and Associate Vice President of Academic Affairs (or designee) will determine what a reasonable number of witnesses is if this is in question.
- 6. The student charged shall have the right to question all witnesses. The testimony of unknown or unidentified witnesses shall not be admissible.
- 7. The committee may address questions to any party or to any witness called by the parties provided; however, the student charged shall not be compelled against his/her wishes to testify or answer any question, and his/her silence shall not be held against him/her.
- 8. The committee shall limit the scope of the testimony to matters relevant to the charges and the defense.
- 9. The committee and/or the accused student may request from the Dean of Students and Associate Vice President of Academic Affairs (or designee) the presence at the hearing of any member of the University community.
- 10. The committee and/or the accused student also may request the Dean of Students and Associate Vice President of Academic Affairs (or designee) to bring records or other exhibits.
- 11. In the event that any person, including the student charged and/or his/her advisor or attorney, shall disrupt the hearing, the chairperson of the committee may exclude that person and proceed with the hearing in his/her absence.
- 12. Documentation and written statements will be admissible, providing the student has access to them in advance and is allowed to respond to them at the hearing.

- 13. The University shall have the burden of proof of guilt by a preponderance of the evidence.
- 14. No recommendation for the imposition of sanctions shall be based solely upon the failure of the person charged to answer the charges.
- 15. An audio tape recording shall be made of the hearings and a summary thereof shall be prepared by the chairperson of the committee. The tape recording shall be destroyed within six months after final disposition of the case by the University, except as may be directed by the Dean of Students and Associate Vice President of Academic Affairs or designee.
- 16. The decision of the Student Conduct Committee shall be considered as a recommendation to be submitted in writing to the Dean of Students and Associate Vice President of Academic Affairs or designee. The Provost may accept or reject the recommendation of the committee based on an independent review of the facts involved in the case.
- 17. Within ten working days (when classes are in session) of receiving the recommendation of the Student Conduct Committee, the Dean of Students and Associate Vice President of Academic Affairs (or designee) will notify the student charged of his/her decision per a certified letter with copies to the college dean, division/department chair, and faculty member.

Student Appeals of Disciplinary Action

The decision of the Dean of Students and Associate Vice President of Academic Affairs (or designee) may be appealed by the student by submitting a written request for review to the Provost (unless the student has waived this right in writing). The request must be reviewed by the Provost (or designee) within ten school days of the dean's decision. The decision of the Provost (or designee) is final and binding.

Removal of Student from Campus Prior to a Hearing (Summary Suspension)

- 1. A Summary Suspension may be imposed upon a student when the Dean of Students and Associate Vice President of Academic Affairs (or designee) has reasonable cause to believe the continued presence of the student on campus constitutes a substantial threat to the safety of himself/herself, to other persons or property, or the stability and continuance of normal University operations. In exercising such authority, the Dean of Students and Associate Vice President of Academic Affairs (or designee) or Provost may rely upon information supplied to him/her by others.
- 2. Following a summary suspension, permission for the student to be on campus for a specific purpose must be granted in writing by the Dean of Students and Associate Vice President of Academic Affairs (or designee) or Provost (or designee).
- 3. Any student summarily suspended who returns to the campus without written permission from the Dean of Students and Associate Vice President of Academic Affairs (or designee) or Provost (or designee) during the period of summary suspension may be subject to disciplinary dismissal.
- 4. If a student questions the fairness of the summary suspension made by the Dean of Students and Associate Vice President of Academic Affairs (or designee) or Provost (or designee), she/he shall be granted, on written request, a hearing before the Dean of Students and Associate Vice President of Academic Affairs (or designee) or Provost (or designee) respectively.
- 5. In order for the request to be considered, it must be received in the Associate Vice President for Student Affairs and Dean of Students office or if the decision was made by the Provost it

- must be received in the Provost Office within five working days (when the University is in session) of the date of the summary suspension.
- 6. The hearing shall be held no later than ten working days (when the University is in session) of the date of the summary suspension.
- 7. The Dean of Students and Associate Vice President of Academic Affairs (or designee) or the Provost's (or designee) decision regarding the Summary Suspension Hearing will be final and binding.
- 8. Hearings held by the Dean of Students and Associate Vice President of Academic Affairs (or designee) or the Provost (or designee) on summary suspension will address the following issues only:
 - The reliability of the information concerning one student's conduct, including the matter of his/her identity.
 - Whether the conduct and surrounding circumstances reasonably indicate that the
 continued presence of the student on the University campus poses a substantial threat to
 himself/herself or to others or to the stability and continuance of normal University
 function.

14. STUDENT GRIEVANCE POLICY AND PROCEDURES

Purpose and Scope

The purpose of this policy is to establish a Governors State University policy and procedures for student grievances in order to ensure due process and respect for individuals' rights. This grievance policy may be invoked in order to bring resolution to disputes. This policy applies to students admitted or enrolled at Governors State University.

Definitions

- For the purpose of this policy, working days shall mean Monday through Friday
- When classes are in session refers to the officially defined fall and spring semesters and summer term.

Circumstances Surrounding Grievances

University students are members of the academic community at Governors State University. As members of the academic community, students are entitled to all the rights and protections enjoyed by all members of society. Students are also subject to obligations by virtue of membership in the university community. As student members of the university community, students have a right to request an explanation, reconsideration, and review of a faculty member's and/or administrator's professional judgment related to decisions rendered in academic and non-academic grievances. Accrediting groups for the various academic majors at Governors State University have different standards and requirements regarding grievances which supersede the university's grievance policy and procedures. The student is responsible for contacting the Division/Department Chair or Dean's Office in the college where the issue related to filing the grievance took place.

Section IV of this policy is applicable to student grievances regarding academic issues, such as faculty and/or administrator's professional judgment related to the issuance of final grades, academic advising, and other academic related matters.

Section V of this policy is applicable to student complaints regarding discrimination, harassment, or other unfair treatment related to non-academic issues.

14.1 Academic Grievances

Informal Resolution

Prior to filing a grievance, the student must seek informal resolution of the issue with the faculty member or administrator directly involved in the issue/incident of concern.

The student must seek this informal resolution within fifteen working days (when classes are in session) of the occurrence of the issue. If, after reasonable efforts, a satisfactory solution is not reached, the student may file a written grievance with the appropriate division/department chair.

Filing a Grievance

- To file an official academic grievance, the student must submit a written statement to the division/department chair of the collegial unit in which the course(s) is offered.
- The division/department chair must receive the written grievance statement within thirty calendar days of the event which led to the grievance.
- The written grievance must state the reasons for the grievance and the remedy that is sought.

Request for Extension of Filing a Grievance

- The student may request a one-time extension of the thirty day time period in which a grievance must be filed.
- This request must be in writing to the division/department chairperson prior to the end of the thirty-day period with reasons and requested time for extension.

Determination of Grievances

Determination if the Grievance is an Issue of Substance

- Upon receipt of the grievance, the division/department chair has seven working days (when classes are in session) to determine if the grievance is an issue of substance.
- Within seven working days (when classes are in session) after receiving the grievance and upon determination it represents an issue of substance covered by the context of the procedures, the division/department chair shall refer the grievance to the chair of the College Grievance Committee.
- The grievance chair shall attempt to find a mutually satisfying solution by working with both the student and the faculty/administrator involved within seven working days (when classes are in session) of receiving the grievance.
- If the grievance chair is unable to mediate a satisfactory solution, he/she shall request in writing that the faculty/administrator involved submit a written response to the student's grievance.

- The response is to be received by the grievance chair within seven working days of the request (when classes are in session).
- The grievance chair shall convene the student grievance committee within ten working days (when classes are in session) of receiving a written response from the faculty/administrator involved.

Determination Grievance is Not an Issue of Substance

- If within seven working days (when classes are in session) after receiving the grievance, the division/department chair decides that the grievance does not represent an issue of substance covered by these procedures, he/she shall so inform the student in writing with reasons.
- The student may appeal (except in cases in which the provost or designee has rendered the decision) the division/department chair's decision of no substance to the dean/director in writing within ten working days (when classes are in session) of receipt of the division/department chair's decision.
- The decision of the dean/director shall be submitted in writing within ten working days (when classes are in session) to the provost (or designee), the chairperson, and the student.
- The student may appeal the dean/director's decision to the provost (or designee) in writing within ten working days (when classes are in session) of receipt of the college dean/director's decision.
- The decision of the provost (or designee) shall be provided in writing within ten working days (when classes are in session) and is final and binding.

Composition and Election of College Grievance Committee Members

- Grievance committee faculty members must agree to serve and be elected by the college faculty at the start of the academic year.
- Grievance committee student members shall be appointed by each college as needed.
- The College Grievance Committee shall have four tenured faculty members from the two divisions or at least two of the departments, as defined by the college structure, and two students. In the event that there are not four tenured faculty members available to serve from that college, faculty from another college may be elected. There should be four faculty alternates and two student alternates in case a quorum cannot be achieved, or if a member of the committee must be excused. The committee should elect the chair.
- The term of the members shall be one academic year. Members may be re-elected for subsequent years.

College Grievance Committee/Grievance Hearing Guidelines

- Responsibility for establishing the validity of the grievance shall be upon the student.
- The hearing will be conducted by the chair of the grievance committee.
- The student or faculty member may have one advisor of his/her choice present during the hearing. However, the advisor shall not participate in the grievance hearing in any way, including, but not limited to asking or responding to questions, making arguments, or presenting witnesses or evidence, and may only advise the grievant or faculty member. If the advisor who will attend the hearing is an attorney, the grievant must notify the chair and dean of that fact a minimum of five calendar days prior to the

hearing. The hearing shall be closed, except when both parties agree that it should be open.

- The grievance chair shall keep a written record of the hearing, which shall include:
 - 1. The names of those present;
 - 2. A copy of any evidence (records, written testimony, duplicated materials, etc.) that is introduced; and
 - 3. A record of the final recommendation of the committee and its rationale.
 - 4. The hearing shall be conducted so that all parties to the dispute have an opportunity to present their views and to rebut those of others.
 - 5. Both grievant and respondent must have the opportunity to address the committee.

Recommendation(s) of the Grievance Committee

- The committee shall make no final recommendation and no testimony heard unless a majority of voting members are present.
- All final recommendations shall require the agreement of a simple majority of voting members present at the hearing.
- The final recommendation of the collegial Grievance Committee shall include:
 - 1. A statement concerning the validity of the alleged grievance;
 - 2. A recommendation for resolving the grievance.
 - 3. Recommendations of the collegial Grievance Committee concerning both the finding relevant to the dispute and the suggested remedy shall be submitted to the division/department chair.

Division/Department Chair's Role Following Committee's Recommendation

- The division/department chair may affirm, reverse, or ask the committee to reconsider its recommendations.
- The division/department chair may also request further information from the principals in the dispute in rendering a decision.
- The division/department chair will render a written decision to the grievant within ten working days (when classes are in session) of receipt of final documentation from the Grievance Committee

Appeal of the Division/Department Chair's Decision

- If the decision by the division/department chair is unsatisfactory to the grievant, the grievant may request a review by the dean.
- The grievant's request must be made in writing within ten working days (when classes are in session) of receipt of the division/department chair's decision.
- The dean will submit a written decision within ten working days (when classes are in session) of receipt of the request to the grievant and the chairperson. (If the respondent is a division/department chair, the collegial dean will assume the functions of the division/department chair stated above. In this instance, appeals to the decisions of the dean shall be made to the provost or designee.)
- The student may appeal this decision to the provost in writing no later than ten working days (when classes are in session) of receipt of the college dean's decision.
- The decision of the provost (or designee) shall be provided in writing within ten working days (when classes are in session) and is final and binding.

- If the respondent is a dean, the provost or designee will assume the functions of the division/department chair specified in the preceding section H. 1 through 3 above. In this instance, the University Academic Grievance Committee assumes the role of the collegial grievance committee.
- Recommendations from the University Academic Grievance Committee are submitted directly to the provost/or designee whose decision is final and binding.

14.2 Nonacademic Grievances:

Discrimination and Sexual Harassment

- <u>Discrimination complaints</u> based on race, color, national origin, religion, gender, ancestry, age, sexual orientation, marital status, disability, citizenship, unfavorable discharge from military service, or veteran status, may be filed with the Director of Human Resources.
- <u>Sexual Harassment</u> in higher education (in accordance with the Illinois Human Rights Act) means any unwelcome sexual advances or requests for sexual favors made by a higher education representative to a student, or any conduct of a <u>sexual</u> nature exhibited by a higher education representative toward a student, when such conduct has the purpose of creating an intimidating, hostile, or offensive educational environment. Students may file a complaint in accordance with Policy 52, "Anti-Discrimination and Harassment Policy and Compliance Procedures." A copy of Policy 52 is available on the Provost's website.

Other Non-academic Issues/Complaints

Regarding other non-academic issues/complaints not covered above, students may file a written complaint with the Dean of Students or his/her designee.

- a. <u>Filing a Complaint:</u> To file a complaint the student must submit a written statement to the Dean of Students or his/her designee within thirty calendar days of the date of occurrence. The written complaint must state the reasons for the grievance and the remedy that is sought.
- b. <u>Request for Extension of Filing a Grievance:</u> The student may request an extension of the thirty day time period in which a complaint must be filed. This request, with rationale, must be in writing to the division/department chairperson prior to the end of the thirty day period.
- c. <u>Determination of Complaints:</u>
 - Upon receipt of the complaint, the Dean of Students or his/her designee has seven working days to determine if the grievance has substance.
 - Determination that the Complaint has No Substance:
 - ✓ If within seven working days (when classes are in session) after receiving the grievance, the Dean of Students or his/her designee decides that the complaint does not have substance covered by these procedures, he/she shall so inform the student in writing with reasons.
 - ✓ The decision of the Dean of Students or his/her designee shall be submitted in writing to the provost (or designee) and the student by certified mail (return receipt requested).

- ✓ The student may appeal the Dean of Students or his/her designee's decision to the provost (or designee) in writing within ten working days (when classes are in session) of receipt of the dean's decision.
- ✓ The decision of the provost (or designee) shall be provided in writing within ten working days (when classes are in session) and is final and binding.
- Determination that the Complaint has Substance:
 - ✓ Within seven working days (when classes are in session) after receiving the complaint and upon determining it has substance Dean of Students or his/her designee shall attempt to find a mutually satisfying solution by working with the student within ten working days (when classes are in session) of receiving the grievance.
 - ✓ If the Dean of Students or his/her designee is unable to mediate a satisfactory solution, he/she shall review the facts and make a decision regarding the student's complaint.
 - ✓ The decision of the Dean of Students or his/her designee shall be submitted in writing within seven days of the request (when classes are in session) to the provost (or designee) and the student.
 - ✓ The student may appeal the Dean of Students or his/her designee's decision to the provost (or designee) in writing within ten working days (when classes are in session) of receipt of the dean's decision.
 - ✓ The decision of the provost (or designee) shall be provided in writing within ten working days (when classes are in session) and is final and binding.

15. COPYRIGHT LAW

United States Copyright Office (Part of the Library of Congress) http://www.copyright.gov/

The Copyright Office web page contains fact sheets on United States Copyright law, search engines for searching registrations and documents, information on licensing, information on how to register, and record works, as well as other information.

Copyright Office Circulars available at http://www.copyright.gov/circs/

- Circular 1 Copyright Basics
- Circular 2 Publications on Copyright
- Circular 6 Access to and Copies of Copyright Office Records and Deposits
- Circular 7d Mandatory Deposit of Copies or Phonorecords for the Library of Congress
- Circular 15a Duration of Copyright
- Circular 15t Extension of Copyright Terms
- Circular 21 Reproduction of Copyrighted Works by Educators and Librarians
- Circular 22 How to Investigate the Copyright Status of a Work
- Circular 23 The Copyright Card Catalog and the Online Files of the Copyright Office

Circular 38a - International Copyright Relations of the United States

Circular 55 - Copyright Registration for Multimedia Works

Circular 61 - Copyright Registration for Computer Programs

Circular 66 - Copyright Registration for Online Works

IPWatchdog.com Copyright Law for Academics http://www.ipwatchdog.com/

Copyright and Fair Use in Instruction Resources

Reproduction of copyrighted material without the permission of the copyright owner is illegal and is an important issue for the academic community. The application of "fair use" rights under Section 107 USC (U.S. Copyright Law) does not automatically give free license for all educational copying. Without understanding the copyright laws and their application in the academic setting, Governors State University faculty members, staff, and students are at risk for violating the rights of the authors and publishers of the material being duplicated. There are legal cases which have tested the educational use of copyright protected works. Notable cases can be found in the U.S. Copyright Law Basics for Educators section of ipwatchdog.com.

There is a disagreement between publishers, the educational community, and library community regarding the development of guidelines for the digital environment. The weighing of the four factors in applying fair use in Title 17 Section 107 USC will often result in a decision to request permission from the copyright owner for the use of materials. The University Library's policies are formulated to comply with the law, and set standards for library services.

Many other issues related to copyright are important in the scholarly community, such as the licensing of software, downloading and sharing files from the Internet, creation of intellectual property using University resources, and the use of videotaped presentation in the classroom. Please consult with the information materials available in the Library, or contact the Reference Desk for more information.

Disclaimer: This is offered as an educational resource only, and does not have the authority of legal advice or opinion.

Copyright Infringement

Copyright infringement is the act of exercising, without permission or legal authority, one or more of the exclusive rights granted to the copyright owner under section 106 of the Copyright Act (Title 17 of the United States Code). These rights include the right to reproduce or distribute a copyrighted work. In the file-sharing context, downloading or uploading substantial parts of a copyrighted work without authority constitutes an infringement. Penalties for copyright infringement include civil and criminal penalties. In general, anyone found liable for civil copyright infringement may be ordered to pay either actual damages or "statutory" damages affixed at not less than \$750 and not more than \$30,000 per work infringed. For "willful" infringement, a court may award up to \$150,000 per work infringed. A court can, in its discretion, also assess costs and attorneys' fees. For details, see Title 17, United States Code,

Sections 504, 505. Willful copyright infringement can also result in criminal penalties, including imprisonment of up to five years and fines of up to \$250,000 per offense. For more information, please see the website of the <u>U.S. Copyright Office</u>.

16. DRUG AND ALCOHOL ABUSE

Consistent with its educational mission, Governors State University is committed to providing education about the effects of the use of drugs and alcohol and to furthering efforts to prohibit possession, use, or abuse of these substances. Counselors in the Academic Resource Center provide referrals for students needing assistance with drug and/or alcohol issues. The Department of Public Safety has preventative education materials available.

Purpose

Governors State University has adopted this policy to inform faculty, staff, and students about the adverse effects of drug and alcohol abuse; standards of conduct, disciplinary and legal sanctions related to such use or abuse; and to advise them regarding available counseling and rehabilitation services, with the intent of fully complying with any current or future requirements, regulations or interpretations developed related to the Federal Drug-Free School and Communities Act amendments of 1989.

Standards of Conduct

All students and employees are prohibited from the unlawful possession, use, or distribution of illicit drugs and alcohol, or the abuse of alcohol on University property or in connection with any University activity.

Disciplinary Sanctions - Students

The following disciplinary sanctions consistent with local, state, and federal law may be imposed for violation of the standards of conduct cited in this policy: warning; loss of privilege; restitution; mandatory participation in an approved drug and/or alcohol abuse treatment, rehabilitation, and/or re-entry program; probation; suspension; summary suspension; or dismissal. Where appropriate, referral for prosecution may be made. One or more sanctions may be imposed. A complete description of the applicable legal sanctions under state and federal law for unlawful possession or distribution of illicit drugs and alcohol is included in the Student Conduct Code (www.govst.edu/policy) and as follows:

Treatment

The University has professional counseling staff in the Academic Resource Center to provide initial counseling assistance to students with problems and/or concerns related to the use and/or abuse of drugs and/or alcohol. Those students who seek University counseling assistance will also be referred to an appropriate community treatment program for more in-depth assessment and treatment if required. Because Governors State University is a nonresidential/commuter institution, students represent a broad geographical service region. The University has resources to assist with appropriate referral to counseling agencies and health facilities to reflect this broad region.

University Disciplinary Sanctions

The Student Conduct Code prohibits the use, possession, and distribution of, or being under the influence of drugs or alcohol, except as permitted by institutional policy or law. Students charged and found to be in violation of the Student Conduct Code (www.govst.edu/policy) are subject to the imposition of a range of official disciplinary sanctions. One or more sanctions consistent with local, state, and federal law may be imposed for violation of the standards of conduct cited in this policy:

Warning: Notice to a student that previous conduct was unacceptable and that future breaches of conduct will be treated more severely.

Loss of Privilege: The withdrawal of a privilege or use of a service for a specific period of time commensurate with the offense committed. Loss of privilege may be imposed separately or in addition to any other sanction(s).

Restitution: Payment for damages to or misappropriation of University property, or the property of visitors to, or members of, the University community. Restitution may be charged to any student who alone, or through group conducted activities, organizes, or knowingly participates in the events causing the damages or costs. Restitution may be imposed separately or in addition to any other sanction(s).

Mandatory participation in an approved drug and/or alcohol abuse treatment program; the student will not be permitted to be on campus for any reason until documentation proving this participation is on file.

Probation: A trial period for a specific time during which a student must behave in a manner acceptable to the University. Terms of the probation shall reflect the purpose of the disciplinary sanction. This status may affect qualification for awards or student aid, when conduct acceptable to the University is a condition of such benefits. Violation of terms of probation or of a further incident of misconduct may result in further disciplinary action. While on probation, a student is encouraged to seek advice and counsel from appropriate University offices.

Suspension: An action which excludes the student from registration, class attendance, and use of University facilities for a specified period of time. Suspension is recorded on the student's academic record during the period in effect and is removed permanently upon reinstatement. Upon termination of this period of suspension, the student shall be considered for registration in compliance with the academic good standing policy. Established proof of a further incident of misconduct, after the student is readmitted, may result in disciplinary dismissal.

Dismissal: The withdrawal by the president of the University, of the privilege of registration and class attendance with no promise (implied or otherwise) that the student may return at any future time. The privilege of the use of University facilities is withdrawn by this action unless specific permission is obtained from the dean of student affairs and services or designee. Disciplinary dismissal is recorded on the student's academic record, to be removed only if and when the student is reinstated. A student on disciplinary dismissal may be readmitted only by action of the

president of the University. A student who has been dismissed is not eligible for readmission earlier than one year from the date of dismissal.

Students may be **accountable to civil authorities** as well as to the University for acts which constitute violations of local, state, or federal law. Where appropriate, referral for prosecution may be made. Disciplinary action at the University will normally proceed during the pending of criminal proceedings and will not be subject to challenge on the grounds that criminal charges involving the same incident(s) have been dismissed or reduced.

State and Federal Legal Sanctions

A number of Illinois and federal criminal statutes provide extended definitions of what constitutes illegal possession, use, and distribution of alcohol and drugs. Definitions of legal sanctions under Illinois law for the unlawful possession, use, and distribution of illicit drugs and alcohol are included in (720 ILCS 570/) Illinois Controlled Substance Act.

Effects/Dangers of Drugs

In addition to severe penalties for violations of University policy and state and federal laws, there are health risks that are associated with the abuse of drugs and alcohol.

17. USE OF ALCOHOL ON CAMPUS

Pursuant to the Board of Trustees Regulations, the President has approved the following policies regarding the delivery, possession, use or consumption of alcoholic beverages (collective "Use of Alcohol") on Governors State University's property or under University supervision, and at University sponsored or sanctioned events held on or outside the GSU campus:

- Any Use of Alcohol is subject to this policy and all applicable federal, state, and local regulations, including, specifically, limitations on legal age.
- Use of Alcohol at University-sponsored events is prohibited unless approved, in writing, by the President or the Director of Public Safety, acting as the President's designee <u>prior</u> to the Use of Alcohol at any GSU event.
- Approvals for the Use of Alcohol at University events shall be limited to specific times and places.
- The sale of alcoholic beverages at University events is prohibited and will not be approved.
- Personal consumption, possession, or display of alcoholic beverages is prohibited in University public places.
- Any person who exhibits offensive behavior, misconduct, excessive noise or creates a public disturbance on University property or property supervised by the University may be subject to disciplinary action under University policies, and/or legal action.
- The purchase of alcoholic beverages with appropriated State of Illinois funds is strictly prohibited.

When permitted under this policy, the use of alcoholic beverages on University premises is a privilege which may be withdrawn, and only be permitted when such use will not interfere with the decorum and academic environment of the University.